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PART I FINANGIL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statement

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
JUNE 30, 200 SEPTEMBER 30, 20(
(UNAUDITED) (AUDITED)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 13,191,08 $ 2,998,75!
Accounts receivabl
Trade 1,339,41. 557,29!
Other, ne 722,86¢ 218,74t
Marketable securitie 2,22¢ 33,36¢
Inventories 1,706,54 368,55
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 975,06" 286,88:
Total current asse 17,937,20 4,463,60
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings, land and leasehold improveme 44,031,59 21,249,42
Furniture and equipment 11,463,95 5,770,18!
55,495,54 27,019,61
Accumulated depreciatic (7,288,11) (5,654,20)
Total property and equipment, r 48,207,43 21,365,41
OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill and indefinite lived intangible 60,272,09 20,179,61
Definite lived intangibles, ne 1,322,111 698,58:¢
Other 761,75! 368,54«
Total other asse’ 62,355,95 21,246,73
Total assets $ 128,500,59 $ 47,075,76

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@ssients.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

JUNE 30, 200 SEPTEMBER 30, 20(
(UNAUDITED) (AUDITED)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl-trade $ 912,19( $ 493,49¢
Accrued liabilities 4,390,84! 1,709,421
Current portion of long-term debt 1,561,24. 3,291,15.
Total current liabilities 6,864,28. 5,494,07!
Deferred tax liability 16,278,16 4,391,49!
Other lon¢-term liabilities 508,57¢ 420,41!
Long-term debt, less current porti 28,877,81 9,011,18!
Long-term debt-related parties 1,260,00! 2,085,00!
Total liabilities 53,788,84. 21,402,17
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
MINORITY INTERESTS 3,359,59! 180,72¢
TEMPORARY EQUITY — Common stock, subject to puthtig) (461,740 and 215,000 shares,
respectively’ 10,935,02 1,450,001
PERMANENT STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.10 par, 1,000,000 shares aa#tirnone issued and outstand -- --
Common stock, $.01 par, 15,000,000 shares auttlihréz272,237 and 6,903,354 shares issuec
respectively 92,72 69,03/
Additional paic-in capital 52,807,47 22,643,59
Accumulated other comprehensive income (i (11,129 20,02
Retained earning 8,821,83! 2,603,98
Less 908,530 shares of common stock held in trgaaticos! (1,293,78I) (1,293,78I)
Total permanent stockhold’ equity 60,417,13 24,042,85
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 128,500,59 $ 47,075,76

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues
Sales of alcoholic beverag
Sales of food and merchand
Service revenue
Internet revenue
Other

Total revenue

Operating expense

Cost of goods sol

Salaries and wagt

Stock compensatic

Other general and administrati\
Taxes and permit
Charge card fee
Rent
Legal and profession
Advertising and marketin
Insurance
Utilities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other
Total operating expenses

Income from operation

Other income (expense
Interest incomt
Interest expens
Minority interests
Income before income tax
Income taxes

Net income

Basic and diluted earnings per sh
Net income, basi
Net income, diluter
Weighted average number of common shares outsigr
Basic
Diluted

FOR THE THREE MONTH¢
ENDED JUNE 30

200¢

2007

(UNAUDITED)

$ 6,085020 $ 3,254,24

FOR THE NINE MONTHS
ENDED JUNE 30

200¢

2007

(UNAUDITED)

$ 15,983,14 $ 8,661,24

1,362,12; 869,85: 3,748,03 2,302,56
7,836,901 3,864,100  20,608,91 10,753,92
194,10} 191,55: 537,60 557,03
800,31 266,59 1,819,35. 770,92
16,278,46 8,446,35  42,697,06 23,045,69
1,901,28. 1,077,98. 4,876,341 2,931,62
3,856,73; 2,238,63 9,740,36 6,465,82;
39,27 48,13 117,81 178,84
2,049,43; 1,088,91 5,304,090 2,943,18,
294,84« 157,93: 748,81 439,44(
613,91( 388,70: 1,697,04: 1,137,97.
463,95 279,33 1,107,191 766,61
665,22; 297,49 1,589,66: 981,29
164,07 192,22! 532,40 501,49
370,06 189,56: 861,29 560,06
652,92 410,50 1,810,38" 1,161,53!
1,489,34. 765,14 3,658,63! 2,352,31!
12,561,05 713457  32,044,04 20,420,19
3,717,40 1,311,77" 10,653,01 2,625,49;
22,08: 28,94( 91,55¢ 41,99
(700,78¢) (345,13)  (1,839,34) (999,14)
(73,500) 120,99° 104,41 293,20
2,965,20! 1,116,58 9,009,63: 1,961,55
1,135,991 84,85¢ 2,791,78; 84,85¢

$ 1,829,200 $ 1,031,72 $ 6,217,85 1,876,69.

$ 0.2: 017 $ 0.8: 0.3¢

$ 0.21 0.1€ $ 0.77 0.3
8,240,91. 6,112,67: 7,536,10. 5,539,92:
8,860,69! 6,789,64 8,238,00. 6,044,309

Comprehensive income for the three months ended 30n 2008 and 2007 were $1,824,755 and $1,0318fR¥ for the nine months wi
$6,258,048 and $1,874,466, respectively. Thidites the changes in available-for-sale securitidsnat income.

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@ssients.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS
ENDED JUNE 30

200¢ 2007
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 6,217,85 $ 1,876,69:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash pravioke operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,810,38! 1,161,53!
Deferred taxe 632,22 84,85¢
Bad debt: -- 14,98¢
Issuance of warran 26,66+ 26,66¢
Beneficial conversiol 13,46¢ 13,46¢
Minority interests (104,417 (293,209
Deferred rent: 88,16¢ 92,70¢
Common stock issued for interest payn 68,29¢ 72,55¢
Stock options issued for employee servi 117,81( 178,84¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 986,94( (576,869
Cash provided by operating activiti 9,857,40: 2,652,23
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of prope 36,00( 9,69t
Additions to property and equipme (2,616,93) (706,920
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu (23,725,33) (5,530,37)
Payments from notes receivable 63,99! 13,47¢
Cash used in investing activiti (26,242,27) (6,214,12)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of common st 27,352,50 5,345,50!
Proceeds from stock options exerci: 168,70( 588,47:
Proceeds from lor-term debt 2,150,00! 600,00(
Distribution to minority interes (75,000 --
Payments on lor-term debt (3,018,99) (1,648,229
Cash provided by financing activities 26,577,20 4,885,74.
NET INCREASE IN CASF 10,192,32 1,323,85!
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOL 2,998,75! 854,93.
CASH AT END OF PERIOD $ 13,191,08 $ 2,178,79
CASH PAID DURING PERIOD FOR
Interest $ 1,708,77 $ 874,50:
Income taxes $ 565,98¢ $ =

Non-cash transactions:

On October 4, 2006, the seller of the New York atalmverted $75,000 of principal from the relatedmissory note into 10,000 share:

restricted common stock.

During October 2006, the Company purchased a 51#%ership interest of Playmates Gentlense@lub LLC for $1,533,750, payable w

$500,000 cash at closing and 125,000 shares oictest common stock.

In December 2006, the Company foreclosed on aeetal house due to nquayment of a note receivable from an unrelatedi tharty. Th

balance of the note receivable was $ 55,175.

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@sients.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Non-cash transactions (continued):

In April 2007, the Company acquired the propertiatiag to its club in Fort Worth, Texas for $2.5llin, comprised of $100,000 in c¢
and a note payable of $2.4 million.

In June 2007, the Company foreclosed on certaiowats and a note receivable in the aggregate anodagproximately $249,000. The
result of the transaction was that the Company evodt the note and accounts and the related defgyae and recorded $53,000 in furni
and equipment in the foreclosure.

During the nine month period ended June 30, 209 holder of a convertible debenture converted #8Z& of principal and interest ir
58,142 shares of restricted common stock.

On November 30, 2007, the Company purchased Miaard&hs Square One, Inc., owner/operator of ToatdRebaret in Florida f
$25,486,000 (which includes inventories and otlsmets), payable to the sellers $15,486,000 in ¢&E)000,000 pursuant to two sect
promissory notes in the amount of $5,000,000 egicis, estimated transaction costs of $175,000.

In February 2008, the Company purchased an airitnafigh the issuance of a note payable of $1,961,5

On March 31, 2008, in connection with the acquisitof the remaining 49% of Playmates Gentlerme@lub LLC, the Company issL
35,000 common shares valued at $700,000.

On March 31, 2008, the Company purchased The Emé,Zac., owner/operator of Crazy Horse Too Cabiaré&hiladelphia for $7,985,0
payable to the Sellers $3,500,000 in cash and $488 pursuant to the issuance of 195,000 shanesstrsfcted common stock.

On April 11, 2008, the Company purchased Hotel Dmpment Ltd., owner/operator of The Executive ClabDallas, Texas for a tot
purchase price of $3,590,609, which was paid thidhg issuance of 152,082 shares of the Compaegtricted common stock and $46,4¢
cash. The Company also purchased the real propssgciated with the club, for a total consideratid $5,599,721, which was paid
$4,250,000, payable $610,000 in cash and $3,64Qt000gh the issuance of a five year promissorg rotd (ii) the issuance of 57,918 sh
of the Company'’s restricted common stock.

On April 15, 2008, the Company acquired three iestito form a media division for a total considenatof $1,069,754, consisting
$700,000 in cash and 21,740 shares of restrictethmam stock.

In April 2008, the holders of convertible debentucenverted $825,000 of principal into 125,953 shaf the Compang’restricted comm
stock.

During the nine month period ended June 30, 208 holder of a convertible debenture converted @B of principal and interest ir
154,038 shares of restricted common stock.

On June 18, 2008, the Company purchased the afsdterth by East Entertainment Ltd., owner/operatbthe Platinum Club Il in Dalla
Texas for a total purchase price of $1,500,000 .c@ghpart of the transaction, the Company alsaigied the real property associated with
club for a total consideration of $6,000,000, whiehs paid $1,650,000 in cash and $4,350,000 thrtheglissuance of a five year promiss
note. The Company also incurred $69,998 costclwvivas paid in cash.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financtistents
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008
(UNAUDITED)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited financial statements haen prepared in accordance with accountingiptescgenerally accepted in the Un
States of America for interim financial informati@md with the instructions to Form 10-QSB and Rafjoth SB. They do not include
information and footnotes required by accountingn@ples generally accepted in the United StatesAoferica for complete financi
statements. However, except as disclosed hetgne thas been no material change in the informatisciosed in the notes to the finan
statements for the year ended September 30, 2@0lad in the Company's Annual Report on FormnKBRB, as filed with the Securities ¢
Exchange Commission. The interim unaudited finalngtatements should be read in conjunction witlse¢hfinancial statements included in
Form 10KSB. In the opinion of management, all adjustmeuatssidered necessary for a fair presentation,istimg solely of normal recurrit
adjustments, have been made. Operating resultedéathree months and the nine months ended Jyr2088 are not necessarily indicative
the results that may be expected for the year gnsl@ptember 30, 2008.

2. RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS AND NEW SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

As explained in Note 9, on April 15, 2008, the Camyp acquired three entities in the media businEs#lowing are the significant account
principles applied in the new segment.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from the sale of magazines and relateertiglng content are recognized when the issueaillidighed and shipped, net of estimi
returns. Revenues and external expenses relatedet®€Companys annual Expo convention are recognized upon theplaion of th
convention in August.

Recent Accounting Standards and Pronouncements

In 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 KtFI8"), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertaintyimcome taxes recognized in an enterped@iancia
statements in accordance with SFAS 109. FIN 48 pitsscribes a recognition threshold and measureattibute for the financial statem:
recognition and measurement of a tax position takeexpected to be taken in a tax return. FIN A8vides guidance on decognition
classification, interest and penalties, accountimgnterim periods, disclosure and transition. Te@mpany adopted FIN 48 as of Octobe
2007, as required.

The current Company policy classifies any interestognized on an underpayment of income taxes tasest expense and classifies
statutory penalties recognized on a tax positiogerseral and administrative expense. There wamteoest and an insignificant amoun
general and administrative expenses recognizedecel®m income taxes for the three months and nioaths ended June 30, 2008.
Company has not taken a tax position that wouldehawmaterial effect on the financial statementthereffective tax rate for the three moi
and nine months ended June 30, 2008 or duringribethree years applicable under FIN 48. It itsed®ined not to be reasonably possible
the amounts of unrecognized tax benefits to sigamifily increase or decrease within 12 months ofatth@ption of FIN 48. The Company
currently subject to a three year statute of litiotas by major tax jurisdictions.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008
3. STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Below is the summary of common stock options outiteg as of June 30, 2008:

Options Options Options Available for
Employee and Director Stock Option Pl Authorized Outstanding Vested Grant
1999 Stock Option Pla 1,500,001 505,00( 435,00( 438,00(

Employee and Director Stock Option Plans

In August 1999, the Company adopted the 1999 S@yution Plan (“the Plan”)The options granted under the Plan may be eithemitive
stock options, or nonualified options. The Plan is administered by Buard of Directors or by a compensation commitiééhe Board ¢
Directors. The Board of Directors has the exclagpower to select individuals to receive grantgdtablish the terms of the options grante
each participant, provided that all options granskdll be granted at an exercise price equal teast 85% of the fair market value of
common stock covered by the option on the grarg dad to make all determinations necessary or abisunder the Plan. The options
subject to termination of employment and generallpire five years from the date of grant. Emploggeéons generally vest in installme
over two years. As of June 30, 2008, 438,000 shareommon stock were available for future gramder the Plan.

Accounting Treatment

Effective October 1, 2006, the Company adopteddhesalue recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123Fhare-Based Payments,” using thi
modified prospective application method. Undes thansition method, compensation cost recogniaethe three and nine months ended
30, 2008 and 2007, includes the applicable amaooint&) compensation of all stodlased payments granted prior to, but not yet vessea
October 1, 2006 (based on the greate fair value estimated in accordance with thgirtal provisions of SFAS 123 and previously prdee
in pro forma footnote disclosures), and (b) compéna cost for all stockased payments granted subsequent to October &,k2G@d on tt
grantdate fair value estimated in accordance with the pevisions of SFAS No. 123R. Results for peripdsr to October 1, 2006, have
been restated. The compensation cost recognizeétidadhree months ended June 30, 2008 and 200% $8%,270 and $48,134, respectiv
and for the nine months ended June 30, 2008 and 2@0e $117,810 and $178,846, respectively, asatref implementing SFAS N
123R. There were 0 and 40,000 stock option exesdim the three months and nine months ended3Wr#Z008, respectively.

The Company used the Bla8choles Option Pricing Model to determine the failue of option grants. The Company estimatedatrerag
holding period of vested options to be three yéams the vesting period, using the simplified methd here were no stock option grants
the three and nine month periods ended June 3@, 200

Stock Option Activity

The following is a summary of all stock option tsactions for the nine months ended June 30, 2008:
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

3. STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION - continued

Shares Weighted
Average
Exercise Pric

Outstanding as of October 1, 2C 545,000 $ 3.61
Granted at market pric -
Granted above market pri -
Cancelled or expire -
Exercised (40,000 4.22

Outstanding as of June 30, 2(C 505,000 $ 3.57
Options exercisable as of June 30, 2 435,000 $ 2.6

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Below is the financial information related to ther@pany’s segments:

FOR THE THREE MONTHS
ENDED JUNE 30

Weighted Aggregate

Average Intrinsic
Remaining Value
Contractual

Term (Years

1.3t ¢ 6,683,35
124 ¢ 6,165,35

FOR THE NINE MONTHS
ENDED JUNE 30

200¢ 2007 200¢ 2007

REVENUES
Club operation: $ 1590190 $ 8,254,790 $ 41,977,00 $ 22,488,66
Media 182,45 -- 182,45 -
Internet website 194,10! 191,55! 537,60t 557,03:
$ 16,278,46 $ 8,446,35 $ 42,697,06 $ 23,045,69

NET INCOME
Club operation: $ 424659 $ 1,969,891 $ 12,187,45 $ 4,369,19
Media (123,589 - (123,58 -
Internet website 31,57 22,60: 61,21¢ 583,70:
Corporate expenst (1,189,38) (875,91) (3,115,45) (2,461,34)
Income taxes (1,135,991 (84,859 (2,791,78) (84,859

$ 1829200 $ 1,031,72

$ 6,217,85 $ 1,876,69

5. LONG-TERM DEBT

On November 9, 2006, the Company entered into atiblee debentures with three shareholders for aggal sum of $600,000. The tern
for two years and the interest rate is 12% per amnAt the election of the holders, the holdersehthe right at any time to convert all or
portion of the principal or interest amount of thebentures into shares of the Comparggmmon stock at a rate of $7.50 per share, wihias
higher than the closing price of the Compangtock on November 9, 2006. The debentures pepwdtsent shareholder approval, tha
number of shares of the Company’s common stockntizgt be issued by the Company or
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

5. LONG-TERM DEBT - continued

acquired by the holders upon conversion of the dielses shall not exceed 19.99% of the total nunolbésued and outstanding shares o
Company’s common stock. The proceeds of the dabentvere used for the acquisition of a 51% owrnprisiterest of Playmates Gentlemen’
Club LLC.

On October 12, 2007, the Company borrowed $1,0@0fAfn an investment company under terms of a 10#vertible debenture. Inter
only is payable quarterly until the principal plascrued interest is due in nine equal quarterlyngays beginning in October 2008.
debenture is subject to optional redemption at tamg after 366 days from the date of issuance 8&d@f the principal face amount p
accrued interest. The debenture plus any outstgntbnvertible interest is convertible by the hologo shares of our common stock at
time prior to the maturity date at the conversioitg of $12 per share. The value of the embeddaeficial conversion feature on the r
payable was calculated using the EITF Issue No5,98ecounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or
Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratios . For the nine months ended June 30, 2008, intesggense related to the value of the embe
beneficial conversion feature was not significant.

In November 2007, the holder of a convertible délnenelected to convert $713,136 of principal ameriest owed into 150,134 shares of
Company'’s restricted common stock.

On November 30, 2007, in connection with the adtjois of Miami Gardens Square One, Inc., (see NBtethe Company entered into t
secured promissory notes in the amount of $5,000e2@h to the sellers (the "Notes"). The Notes bearest at the rate of 14% per ant
with the principal payable in one lump sum paymamtNovember 30, 2010. Interest on the Notes islgay@onthly, in arrears, with the fi
payment due thirty (30) days after the closinghef transaction, which occurred on November 30, 208@ Company cannot ppay the Note
during the first twelve (12) months; thereaftee tbompany may prepay the Notes, in whole or in, paavided that (i) any prepayment by
Company from December 1, 2008 through November2809, shall be paid at a rate of 110% of the oabjprincipal amount and (ii) a
prepayment by the Company after November 30, 20@§, be prepaid without penalty at a rate of 100%eforiginal principal amount.

Effective February 1, 2008, the Company borrowe®®1,000 from a lender. The funds were utilizegay off certain other Company deb
the amount of $1,797,529. The new debt bearsdstet 9% and interest is payable monthly untilr&aty 1, 2013 at which time the princi
is due in full. The note is collateralized by eémtCompany-owned property in Minneapolis, Minnasot

In January 2008 and in April 2008, the holder a@oavertible debenture converted $21,918 and $24¢832erest owed into 1,826 and 2,
shares of restricted common stock, respectively.

In February 2008, the Company borrowed $1,561,50f fa lender. The funds were used to purchaseramfa The debt bears interes
6.15% with monthly principal and interest paymeoft$11,323 beginning March 12, 2008. The note meston February 12, 2028.

In connection with the acquisition of the real &sta Dallas related to the acquisition of HotelvBlepment Ltd., on April 11, 2008 (Note
the Company issued a $3,640,000 fyemr promissory note (the "Promissory Note"). Phemissory Note bears interest at a varying ratke
greater of (i) two percent (2%) above the PrimeeRat (i) seven and onlealf percent (7.5%), and is guaranteed by the Compad Eri
Langan, the
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

5. LONG-TERM DEBT - continued
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, individually.

In April 2008, the holders of convertible debentuoanverted $825,000 of principal into 125,953 shaf the Compang’restricted commic
stock.

On May 5, 2008, the Company issued $150,000 in 108 convertible debentures with identical termbe Tebentures are payable inte
only in quarterly payments and the entire princiguadl accrued interest is due in one year. Theehatithe debenture has the right to cor
all or any portion of the principal and any accrumd unpaid interest into shares of the Compamgmmon stock at a conversion pric
$25.32 per share.

On June 18, 2008, in connection with the acquisittd the assets of the Platinum Club Il in Dall&sxas (Note 9), the Comparsyivholly
owned subsidiary RCI Holdings, Inc. (“RCl"also acquired the Real Property from Wire Way, LLE&, Texas limited liabilit
company. Pursuant to a Real Estate Purchase dad\§aeement dated May 10, 2008, RCI paid totalsteration of $6,000,000, which v
paid $1,650,000 in cash and $4,350,000 througlsteance of a five (5) year promissory note (theffissory Note”). The Promissory No
bears interest at a varying rate at the greatén) ofvo percent (2%) above the Prime Rate or @yen and onéalf percent (7.5%), which
guaranteed by the Company and by Eric Langan, dmp@any’s Chief Executive Officer, individually.

6. TEMPORARY EQUITY

Through June 30, 2008, 215,000 shares of the Cophparommon stock valued at $1,450,000 were reclassifiom temporary equity
permanent equity, as the holders of the put opgt@d such shares on the open market.

In connection with the acquisition of The End Zohw;., owner and operator of the Compan{?hiladelphia club on March 31, 2008,
Company issued 195,000 common shares with a pigroat $23.00 per share (see Note 9).

In connection with the acquisition of the remain#ff6 of Playmates Gentlemen’s Club LLC, operatahefCompany’s Ricls Austin club o
March 31, 2008, the Company issued 35,000 commarestwith a put option at $20.00 per share (see Blot

In connection with the acquisition of Hotel Deveatognt Ltd., operator of the Company’s RigkDallas club on April 11, 2008, the Comp
issued 210,000 common shares with a put optio2&08 per share (see Note 9).

In connection with the acquisition of three entitte form the Compang’new media division on April 15, 2008, the Comp#ssgued 21,74
common shares with a put option at $23.00 per Sfsae Note 9).
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7. COMMON STOCK

On November 19, 2007, the Company completed ateripcement of equity securities solely to acteetlinvestors. Pursuant to the pri
placement, the Company issued 1,165,000 shardseo€ompanys restricted common stock at a price of $14.00gbare for a total gro
offering price of $16,310,000 with net proceedsapproximately $15,000,000 to the Company after eges. Pursuant to the terms of
transaction, the Company filed a registration statet on February 14, 2008, which became effectiv€ebruary 27, 2008. The offer and
of the common stock was made pursuant to exemptions the registration requirements of the Act piargt to Section 4(2) and Rule 50¢
Regulation D promulgated thereunder. All of theeoffand sales of the common stock were made exelydd “accredited investorsaé suc
term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D)fifers and sales not involving a public offerinfhe purchasers purchased the securitie
their own account and not with a view towards arrésale. The private placement was conducted witheneral solicitation or advertising.

During the nine months ended June 30, 2008, thdehalf a convertible debenture converted $759,98priocipal and interest owed ir
154,038 shares of restricted common stock.

In April 2008, the holders of convertible debentuoanverted $825,000 of principal into 125,953 shaif the Compang’restricted commic
stock.

On June 12, 2008, the Company completed the prplatement of 672,000 shares of our restricted comstock to institutional investors &
price of $20.00 per share for gross proceeds of,4803000 with net proceeds of approximately $1230% to the Company af
expenses. The common stock was sold under themienfrom registration provided by Section 4(2)tbé Securities Act of 1933 and

rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. oAlithe offers and sales of the common stock wer@lemexclusively to dccredite
investors” s such term is defined in Rule 501(a) of RegutaB) in offers and sales not involving a publicesfiig. The purchasers in

private placement purchased the securities for twei account and not with a view towards or farale. The private placement was condt
without general solicitation or advertising.

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The Company computes earnings per share in acamdaith Statement of Financial Accounting Stand4f&&AS”) No. 128,Earnings Per
Share. SFAS No. 128 provides for the calculation ofibasd diluted earnings per share. Basic earniegshare includes no dilution an
computed by dividing income available to commoncklmlders by the weighted average number of comstares outstanding for 1
period. Diluted earnings per share reflect theptgl dilution of securities that could sharehe tarnings of the Company.

Potential common stock shares consist of sharésthy arise from outstanding dilutive common stegkrants and options (the nhumbe
which is computed using the “treasury stock methedtit! from outstanding convertible debentures (thabmr of which is computed using
“if converted method”). Diluted EPS considers tiwential dilution that could occur if the Compasyutstanding common stock warra
options and convertible debentures were converitml gommon stock that then shared in the Compargrnings (as adjusted for inte
expense, that would no longer occur if the debestwere converted).

Net earnings applicable to common stock and theglted — average number of shares used for basic and dileéedings per she
computations are summarized in the table thatviallo
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8. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) - continued

FOR THE THREE MONTH FOR THE NINE MONTHE¢
ENDED JUNE 3( ENDED JUNE 3(
200¢ 2007 200¢ 2007
Basic earnings per shal
Net earnings applicable to common stockholt $ 1,829,200 $ 1,031,72° $ 6,217,850 $ 1,876,69.

Average number of common shares outstan 8,240,91. 6,112,67 7,536,10 5,539,92.
Basic earnings per share $ 02z $ 017 $ 0.8: $ 0.34
Diluted earnings per shat

Net earnings applicable to common stockholt $ 1,829,200 $ 1,031,72° $ 6,217,850 $ 1,876,69.

Adj. to net earnings from assumed conversion oedalres (1) 19,80( 43,14¢ 113,40( 59,40(

Adj. net earnings for diluted EPS computation $ 1,849,000 $ 1,07487 $ 6,331,251 $ 1,936,09.

Average number of common shares outstanc
Common shares outstandi 8,240,91. 6,112,67 7,536,10: 5,539,92.
Potential dilutive shares resulting from exercitgarrants and option:

2 399,78! 280,04¢ 401,99 284,47"
Potential dilutive shares resulting from conversididebentures (< 220,00( 396,92( 300,00( 220,00(
Total average number of common shares outstandied for dilution 8,860,69! 6,789,64 8,238,09 6,044,39

Diluted earnings per share $ 021 $ 0.1¢ $ 077 $ 0.32

(1) Represents interest expense on dilutive caierdebentures, that would not occur if they wassumed converted.

(2) All outstanding warrants and options were adered for the EPS computation.

(3) Convertible debentures (principal and accrueigréest) outstanding at June 30, 2008 and 2007ingt$2,410,000 and $2,895,6
respectively, were convertible into common stoclagirice from $3.00 to $25.32 per share in 2008 $800 to $7.50 per share in 2C
respectively, and resulted in additional commorrehi#based on average balances outstanding). tRbtihutive shares of 166,979 and 80,
for the three and nine months ended June 30, 288Bectively, have been excluded from earningsipare due to being anti-dilutive.

9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

On October 11, 2006, the Company sold its propeitieWise County for $165,000, which was the vadfighe properties included in {
Company’s balance sheet at September 30, 2006rafferding an impairment charge of $68,134 in Saptr 2006.

On November 10, 2006, the Company purchased a 54&fership interest of Playmates GentlenseQlub LLC, an operator of an ac
nightclub in Austin, Texas. The club is located®&i0 Springdale Street. The purchase price &3R81750 was paid $500,000 cash at clc
and 125,000 shares of the Company'’s restricted aamstock, valued at $8.27 per share in accordartteBATF 99-12,Determination of the
Measurement Date for the Market Price of Acquirer Securities Issued in a Purchase Business Combination . The club has been converted
Rick’'s Austin. As part of the agreement, twelve morsfisr the closing date, the seller has the right, ot the obligation, to have 1
Company buy the shares at a price of $8.00 pee<htaa rate of no more than 5,000 shares per morthsuch time as the seller receive
total of $1,000,000 from the sale of such shardterAatively, the seller has the option to selltssbares in the open market. The transa
was the result of arms-length negotiations betvikerparties.
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS-continued

The following information summarizes the allocatimfrfair values assigned to the assets and ligdslat the acquisition

Property and equipme $ 633,41
Non-compete agreeme 175,00(
Goodwill 725,33¢
Net assets acquire $ 1,533,75

The results of operations of this acquired enfitgmn November 10, 2006, are included in the Compamngsults of operations, with minol
interest offsetting such results in the accompagpialance sheet until such minority interest wapiaed by the Company as disclosed below.

Proforma results of operations have not been peakids the amounts were not deemed material toahsolidated financial statements.
transaction follows the Company’s growth strategy.

On April 23, 2007, the Company completed a trarisadbr the purchase of 100% of the outstanding romm stock of W.K.C., Inc., a Tex
corporation (the "Business"), which owned and ofgeran adult entertainment cabaret known as Newadsl Nights ("New Orleans Night
located in Fort Worth, Texas. Pursuant to theksfmorchase agreement, the Company acquired then@ssfor a total cash purchase pric
$4,900,000. As part of the transaction, the sefeered a fivarear covenant not to compete with the Company erBisiness. In additic
RCI Holdings, Inc., the Compars/'wholly owned subsidiary ("RCI"), entered into assignment of that certain real estate sales au
between the owner of the property and W.K.C., facthe purchase of the real property located &tl7@almont, Fort Worth, Texas 76116 1
"Real Property") where New Orleans Nights is lodater a total purchase price of $2,500,000, whiohnsisted of $100,000 in cash
$2,400,000 payable in a spear promissory note to the sellers which will aecinterest at the rate of 7.25% for the first tears, 8.25% f
years three and four and 9.25% thereafter (the miiRsory Note"). The Promissory Note is securedabyleed of trust and secu
agreement. Further, RCI entered into an assigniemeshtassumption of lease agreement with the sebleassume the lease agreement fo
Real Property. The Company also incurred $121i825sts.

The following information summarizes the allocatwfrfair values assigned to the assets and liggsilet the acquisition date.

Net current asse $ 30,48¢
Property and equipme 2,968,12
Non-compete agreeme 100,00(
Goodwill 1,636,58!
SOB license: 4,423,211
Deferred tax liability (1,636,58)
Net assets acquire $ 7,521,82!

The results of operations of this acquired entigyiacluded in the Company’s results of operatisinse April 24, 2007.
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS - continued

The following unaudited pro forma information pretethe results of operations as if the acquisitiad occurred as of October 1, 2006.
pro forma information is not necessarily indicatoewhat would have occurred had the acquisitioanbmade as of such periods, nor
indicative of future results of operations. The fwrma amounts give effect to appropriate adjustéor the fair value of the assets acqu
amortization of intangibles and interest expense.

For Three Months End: For Nine Months Ende

June 30, 200 June 30, 200
Revenue! $ 8,770,08. $ 25,764,47
Net income $ 1,049,91° $ 2,425,87
Net income per sha~ basic $ 0.1t $ 0.3¢
Net income per shar- diluted $ 0.1t $ 0.37
Weighted average shares outstane basic 6,787,67! 6,214,92.
Weighted average shares outstan« diluted 7,464,64 6,719,39

On May 10, 2007, the Company entered into a Licensigreement with Rick’s Buenos Aires Sociedad Aman(“Licensee”),a corporatio
organized under the laws of Argentina. The Compagreed to grant Licensee a license for use antbigagon of the Compang’ logos
trademarks and service marks for the operation rofadult entertainment facility in the city of Buend\ires, Argentina, and Lal
America. Pursuant to the agreement, Licensee ddoepay the Company a royalty fee equal to 109ro$s revenues of Licensedjusines
net of any value added tax. No club has openedfdhis time, but plans are for a location to ogen business by the end of caler
year 2008

On November 30, 2007, the Company entered intooakSPurchase Agreement for the acquisition of 1Qff%he issued and outstand
common stock of Stellar Management Corporationlogida corporation (the "Stellar Stock™) and 100%4he issued and outstanding comtr
stock of Miami Garden Square One, Inc., a Floridgooration (the "MGSO Stock") which owns and opesaan adult entertainment cab
known as "Tootsie’s Cabaret" ("Toots#) located at 150 NW 183rd Street, Miami Gardéitstida 33169 (the "Transaction"). Pursuant tc
Stock Purchase Agreement, the Company acquire&tilar Stock and the MGSO Stock from Norman HickenHickmore") and Richa
Stanton ("Stanton") for a total purchase price 26,886,000 (which includes inventory and other @3spayable to the sellers $15,486,0C
cash, $10,000,000 pursuant to two secured pronyissates in the amount of $5,000,000 each to StaatwhHickmore (the "Notes"), pl
estimated transaction costs of $175,000. The Noitbear interest at the rate of 14% per annunhulite principal payable in one lump <
payment on November 30, 2010. Interest on the Noiéde payable monthly, in arrears, with the fipryment being due thirty (30) days &
the closing of the Transaction. The Company capmn®pay the Notes during the first twelve (12) monthgreafter, the Company may pre
the Notes, in whole or in part, provided that flyarepayment by the Company from December 1, 2068igh November 30, 2009, shall
paid at a rate of 110% of the original principalcamt
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS — continued

and (ii) any prepayment by the Company after Novang®, 2009, may be prepaid without penalty atta o& 100% of the original princif.
amount. The Notes are secured by the Stellar S#tockMGSO Stock under a Pledge and Security Agreemfen part of the Transactic
Hickmore and Stanton entered into fiyear covenants not to compete with the Companyitisaélly, as part of the Transaction, the Comg
entered into Assignment to Lease Agreements wiHahdlord for the property where Tootsiés located. The underlying lease agreemen
the property provide for an original lease ternotlgh June 30, 2014, with two option periods whicleghe Company the right to lease
property through June 30, 2034. The terms anditiond of the transaction were the result of extensrm's length negotiations between
parties.

The following information summarizes the initialaation of fair values assigned to the assetsliabdities at the acquisition date based «
preliminary valuation. Subsequent adjustments mayrecorded upon the completion of the valuatiod #re final determination of t
purchase price allocation.

Net current asse $ 390,00(
Property and equipment and other as 4,919,001
Non-compete agreeme 200,00(
Goodwill 7,546,241
SOB license: 20,152,00
Deferred tax liability (7,546,24)
Net assets acquire $ 25,661,00

The results of operations of this acquired entigyiacluded in the Company’s results of operatisinse December 1, 2007.

The following unaudited pro forma information pretethe results of operations as if the acquisitiad occurred as of the beginning of
immediate preceding period. The pro forma infoiorais not necessarily indicative of what would @awccurred had the acquisition b
made as of such periods, nor is it indicative ¢fife results of operations. The pro forma amogiws effect to appropriate adjustments for
fair value of the assets acquired, amortizatiomtangibles and interest expense.
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS — continued

FOR THE THREE MONTH
ENDED JUNE 3(

FOR THE NINE MONTH¢
ENDED JUNE 3(

200¢ 2007 200¢ 2007

Revenue! $ 16,278,46 $ 12,680,17 $ 45,663,71 $ 35,747,17
Net income $ 1,829,20. $ 1,874,177 $ 6,579,34 $ 4,404,03
Net income per sha~ basic $ 02z $ 0.2¢ $ 087 $ 0.6¢€
Net income per sha- diluted $ 021 $ 02¢ % 081 $ 0.62
Weighted average shares outstan basic 8,240,91. 7,277,67 7,536,10: 6,704,92.
Weighted average shares outstan« diluted 8,860,69 7,954,64 8,238,009 7,209,39

The following unaudited pro forma information pretethe results of operations as if the acquisitioh W.K.C., Inc. and Miami Garde
Square One, Inc. had occurred as of the beginrfitigegammediate preceding period. The pro fornfarimation is not necessarily indicative
what would have occurred had the acquisition beaderas of such periods, nor is it indicative otifatresults of operations. The pro fo
amounts give effect to appropriate adjustmentstferfair value of the assets acquired, amortizatfdntangibles and interest expense.

FOR THE THREE MONTH FOR THE NINE MONTH¢

ENDED JUNE 3(

ENDED JUNE 3(

200¢ 2007 200¢ 2007

Revenue! $ 16,278,46 $ 13,003,90 $ 45,663,71 $ 38,465,95
Net income $ 1,829,200 $ 1,892,360 $ 6,579,34 $ 4,953,22
Net income per sha~ basic $ 02z $ 02, % 087 $ 0.67
Net income per sha- diluted $ 021 $ 02z $ 081 $ 0.64
Weighted average shares outstan basic 8,240,91. 7,952,67! 7,536,10: 7,379,92.
Weighted average shares outstanc- diluted 8,860,69 8,629,64 8,238,009 7,884,39
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS — continued

On March 31, 2008, the Company’'s wholly owned didiasy, RCI Entertainment (Philadelphia), Inc. (tHeurchaser”)completed th
acquisition of 100% of the issued and outstandingres of common stock (the “TEZ Sharesf) The End Zone, Inc., a Pennsylve
corporation (the “Corporation”) which owns and ages “Crazy Horse Too Cabaret” (the “Cluttdrated at 2908 South Columbus Bl
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19148 (the “Real Prigpefrom Vincent Piazza (the “Seller”). As part the transaction, the Compasywholly
owned subsidiary, RCI Holdings, Inc. (“RCI Holdirigacquired from the Piazza Family Limited Partigps(the “Partnership Seller§1% o
the issued and outstanding partnership interest ‘@artnership Interests’h TEZ Real Estate, LP, a Pennsylvania limited nmeghip (th
“Partnership”) and 51% of the issued and outstapdimlembership interest (the “Membership Interesie”)TEZ Management, LLC,
Pennsylvania limited liability company, which isstgeneral partner of the Partnership (the “Gerieaainer”). The Partnership owns the R
Property where the Club is located. At closing thompany paid a purchase price of $3,500,000 $h ¢ar the Partnership Interests
Membership Interests, and issued 195,000 shardeedfompany'’s restricted common stock (the “Rickiares”)valued at $23 per share
the TEZ Shares.

As part of the transaction, the Company enteredl ént. ock-Up/Leakout Agreement with the Seller pursuant to which,oorafter one ye
after the closing date, the Seller shall have idjet,rbut not the obligation, to have Rick’s pursbdrom Seller 5,000 Ric&’'Shares per mor
(the “Monthly Shares”), calculated at a price pears equal to $23.00 (“Value of the Rick's Share®} the Companys election during ar
given month, the Company may either buy the Mon8tiares or, if the Company elects not to buy thatkly Shares from the Seller, then
Seller shall sell the Monthly Shares in the operkeia Any deficiency between the amount which 8aler receives from the sale of
Monthly Shares and the Value of the Rel&hares shall be paid by the Company within ti{8@ebusiness days of the date of sale o
Monthly Shares during that particular month. Thampanys obligation to purchase the Monthly Shares from Seller shall terminate a
cease at such time as the Seller has receivea@leofd$4,485,000 from the sale of the RElBhares and any deficiency. As of June 30, :
the 195,000 shares of restricted common stock wlessified on the consolidated balance sheet apdiary equity in accordance with El
Topic D-98,Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities .

Additionally, at closing, the Seller and the Parshép Seller entered a fiwgear agreement not to compete with the Companyinahwent
(20) mile radius of the Club. Finally, the Corpdoatentered into a new lease agreement with then@®ahip giving it the right to lease the F
Property for twenty (20) years (“Original Term”)tWian option for an additional nine (9) years efe{&l) eleven months (“Option Termi)ith
rent payable at the rate of (i) $50,000 per mosiihject to adjustment for increases in the Consutniee Index (CPI) every five years dur
the Original Term and the Option Term, or (ii) 8%gooss sales, whichever is higher. The maximuoneiase in the CPI for any five (5) y
period shall be 15%.

The following information summarizes the initialaation of fair values assigned to the assetsliabdities at the acquisition date based «

preliminary valuation. Subsequent adjustments tayrecorded upon the completion of the valuatiod #re final determination of t
purchase price allocation.
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS — continued

Property and equipment and other as $ 3,882,88
Non-compete agreeme 100,00(
Goodwill 1,480,78:
SOB license: 4,002,11!
Deferred tax liability (1,480,78)
Net assets acquire $ 7,985,00

The results of operations of this acquired entigyiacluded in the Company'’s results of operatisinse March 31, 2008.

Proforma results of operations have not been peakids the amounts were not deemed material toahsolidated financial statements.
transaction follows the Company’s growth strategy.

On March 31, 2008, the Company'’s subsidiary, RQeEainment (Austin), Inc. (“RCI")¢ompleted the acquisition of 49% of the membe!
interest of Playmates Gentlemen’s Club, LLC (“Playes”) from Behzad Bahrami (“Seller'fgsulting in 100% ownership by the Compan
RCI. Playmates owns an adult entertainment calbam@t/n as “Playmates” (the “Clubipcated at 8110 Springdale Road, Austin, Texas 4
(the “Premises”).Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, RCI aaadal purchase price of $1,401,711 which wad $a01,711 in ca:
and debt forgiveness at the time of closing andigkeance of 35,000 shares of the Compamgstricted common stock valued at $20.0(
share (the “Shares”). For accounting purposesCiirapanys investment is only $751,000, due to the previoases of the minority intere
which have been expensed. The investment hasass@med to goodwill.

Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreemerdr after one year after the closing date, theeBshall have the right, but not the obliga
to have the Company purchase from Seller 5,000eShaer month (the “Monthly Shares@alculated at a price per share equal to $:
(“Value of the Shares”). Seller shall notify ther@pany during any given month of its election tat'Pthe Monthly Shares to the Compi
during that particular month. At the Compasglection during any given month, the Company migtyer buy the Monthly Shares or, if
Company elects not to buy the Monthly Shares frbenSeller, then the Seller shall sell the Monthhai®s in the open market. Any deficie
between the amount which the Seller receives fitoenstle of the Monthly Shares and the Value ofShares shall be paid by the Comg
within three (3) business days of the date of efithe Monthly Shares during that particular monithe Companys obligation to purchase 1
Monthly Shares from the Seller shall terminate aerdse at such time as the Seller has receivedabdb®700,000 from the sale of
Shares. As of June 30, 2008, the 35,000 shanmeswicted common stock were classified on the alisteted balance sheet as temporary e
in accordance with EITF Topic D-98)assification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities.

In the event the Seller elects not to “Put” ther8hdo the Company, the Seller shall not sell ntioa@ 10,000 Shares during any @&y periol
in the open market, provided that Seller compliéth \Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933, as adeeh in connection with his sale of
Shares.

The full results of operations of this entity aneluded in the Company’s results of operationsesiarch 31, 2008.
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS — continued

On April 11, 2008, the Comparg/wholly owned subsidiary, RCI Entertainment (Ds)lJdnc., completed the acquisition of 100% of igguet
and outstanding partnership interest (the "Parmersnterest”) of Hotel Development Fexas, Ltd, a Texas limited partnership

"Partnership") and 100% of the issued and outstendiembership interest (the "Membership Interest"HD-Texas Management, LLC
Texas limited liability company, the general partoéthe Partnership (the "General Partner”) framd Golding, Kenneth Meyer, and Cha
McClure (the "Sellers"). The Partnership owns apdrates an adult entertainment cabaret known as Ekeecutive Club" (the "Club"), locat
at 8550 North Stemmons Freeway, Dallas, Texas 73 "Real Property"). As part of the transactitine Companys wholly owne:
subsidiary, RCI Holdings, Inc. ("RCI"), also acadrthe Real Property from DPC Holdings, LLC, a &ehaited liability company ("DPC").

At closing, the Company paid a total purchase poicg3,590,609 for the Partnership Interest and Bkenship Interest, which was paid thro
the issuance of 50,694 shares of the Commargstricted common stock to each of Messrs. Gglditeyer and McClure, for an aggregate !
of 152,082 shares (collectively, the "Rick's Cluafs") to be valued in accordance with EITF12%t $23.30 per share ($3,544,119)
$46,490 in cash. As consideration for the purchafsthe Real Property, RCI paid total consideratain$5,599,721, which was paid
$4,250,000, payable $610,000 in cash and $3,640/000gh the issuance of a five year promissor rfte "Promissory Note") and (ii) 1
issuance of 57,918 shares of the Compamgstricted common stock (the "Rick's Real Prgp8&tiares") to be valued at $23.30 per <
($1,349,721). The Promissory Note bears intereat\arying rate at the greater of (i) two perc@%) above the Prime Rate or (ii) seven
onehalf percent (7.5%), and is guaranteed by Rickt Bric Langan, individually. At Closing, the Pagientered into an Amendment
Purchase Agreement solely to provide for the Selierset aside 10,500 Rick's Club Shares undesaro® Agreement for the offset of cer
liabilities of the Partnership. The Company alscurred costs in the amount of $37,848, which waad m cash.

At Closing, the Sellers entered into Lock-Up/Lealst Agreements pursuant to which on or after oree géter the closing date, the Sellers ¢
have the right, but not the obligation to have Rigkurchase from Sellers an aggregate of 3,621eShgar month (the "Monthly Club Share
calculated at a price per share equal to $25.0GIpere ("Value of the Rick's Club Shares") untitteaf the individual Sellers has receive
total of $1,267,350 from the sale of the Rick'siC&hares. At the Comparsyelection during any given month, the Company mittlyer bu
the Monthly Club Shares or, if the Company eledsta buy the Monthly Club Shares from the Sell¢ghen the Sellers shall sell the Mont
Club Shares in the open market. Any deficiency betwthe amount, which the Sellers receive fronséhe of the Monthly Club Shares and
Value of the Rick's Club Shares shall be paid &y @ompany within three (3) business days of the datsale of the Monthly Club Sha
during that particular month. The Compasighbligation to purchase the Monthly Club Sharesfthe Sellers shall terminate and cease al
time as the Sellers have received an aggregateofdt&,802,050 from the sale of the Rick's Clula&is and any deficiency.

Additionally, at Closing, DPC entered into a Lock/Ueak-Out Agreement pursuant to which on or after one wé&r the closing date, DI
shall have the right, but not the obligation to éaick's purchase from DPC 1,379 Shares per mahth"Monthly Real Estate Share:
calculated at a price per share equal to $25.0G e ("Value of the Rick's Real Estate Sharest) DPC has received a total of $1,447,
from the sale of the Rick's Real Estate Sharesh&tCompanys election during any given month, the Company mitlyer buy the Month
Real Estate Shares or, if the Company elects notiyathe Monthly Real Estate Shares from DPC, DB shall sell the Monthly Real Est
Shares in the open market. Any deficiency betwéenamount which DPC receives from the sale of tlemthly Real Estate Shares and
Value of the Rick's Real Estate Shares shall bet Ipathe Company within three (3) business dayk®flate of sale of the Monthly
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Real Estate Shares during that particular montte Tlempanys obligation to purchase the Monthly Real Estatar&h from DPC shi
terminate and cease at such time as DPC has rdcaivaggregate total of $1,447,950 from the saln®fRick's Real Estate Shares and
deficiency.

Finally, at Closing each of the Sellers entered/@ year Non€ompetition Agreement with the Company pursuaniwich they agreed not
compete with the Company in Dallas County or arjg@eht county.

The following information summarizes the initialcadation of fair values assigned to the assetsliabdities at the acquisition date based «
preliminary valuation. Subsequent adjustments mayrecorded upon the completion of the valuatiod #re final determination of t
purchase price allocation.

Net current asse $ 34,44:
Property and equipment and other as 6,264,85!
Non-compete agreeme 300,00(
Goodwill 972,68
SOB license: 2,628,88.
Deferred tax liability (972,68)
Net assets acquire $ 9,228,17

The results of operations of this entity are inelddh the Company’s results of operations sincdl Afr, 2008.

Proforma results of operations have not been peayids the amounts were not deemed material toahsolidated financial statements.
transaction follows the Company’s growth strategy.

Media Acquisitions

On April 15, 2008, the Compars/wholly owned subsidiary, RCI Entertainment (MeHialdings), Inc., a Texas corporation ("RCI Medi
acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding constamk (the "ED Stock") of ED Publications, Inc.Texas corporation ("ED"), 100% of 1
issued and outstanding common stock (the "TEEZEKSt@f TEEZE International, Inc., a Delaware camton ("TEEZE") and 100% of tl
issued and outstanding membership interest (theritddeship Interest”) of Adult Store RCI Media MagegiLLC, a Georgia limited liabili
company.

ED Publications, Inc.

Under the terms of a Purchase Agreement betweerMiDamtt ("Waitt"), RCI Media and Rick's Cabaret Imational, Inc. ("Rick's") dated Ap
15, 2008 (the "ED Purchase Agreement"), the Compamnged to pay Waitt the following considerationtfte purchase of the ED Stock:

(i) $300,000 cash at closing;
(i) $200,000 cash payable in 6 months; and

(ii) The issuance of 8,696 shares of restricteghmmn stock valued at $17.01 per share (the "CloShmyes") in accordance with EITF 99-12.
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Additionally, during the three (3) year period @lling the Closing Date (the "Earn Out Period"), Wahall be entitled to earn additio
consideration (the "Additional Consideration") g to $2,000,000 (the "Maximum Amount") consisting$®00,000 cash (the “Cashanc
65,217 shares of restricted common stock value$28t00 per share (the "Earn Out Shares"), based thgo earnings before income 1
depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") of RClI Mad RCI Media will pay the Maximum Amount of the ditional Consideration to tl
Seller if RCI Media's EBITDA during the three (3ar period following the Closing Date totals anraegate of $2,400,000. At the end of €
twelve (12) month period after the Closing Date,| RM2dia shall determine its EBITDA and shall pay\Waitt any such portion of tl
Additional Consideration as has been earned. Thei@ Shares and Earn Out Shares are collectieédyred to as the "Rick's Shares".

At Closing, Waitt entered into a Lock-Up/Le&ut Agreement with the Company pursuant to whictooafter one year after the closing ¢
with respect to the Closing Shares, or on or afésen (7) months from the date of issuance withe@sto the Earn Out Shares, if any, W
shall have the right, but not the obligation to éavith respect to the Earn Out Shares, if any, Vgaill have the right, but not the obligatio
have Rick's purchase from Waitt 5,000 Rick's Shpezanonth (the "Monthly Shares"), calculated ptiae per share equal to $23.00 per s
("Value of the Rick's Shares") until Waitt has riged an aggregate of $1,700,000 (i) from the séka® Rick's Shares sold in the open me
or in a private transaction or otherwise, andttig payment of any deficiency (as defined in the FiDchase Agreement) by Rick's. At
Companys election during any given month, the Company either buy the Monthly Shares or, if the Comparectd not to buy the Montt
Shares from Waitt, then Waitt shall sell the MontBhares in the open market. Any deficiency betwtberamount which Waitt receives fr
the sale of the Monthly Shares and the Value oRiok's Shares shall be paid by the Company witmiee (3) business days of the date of
of the Monthly Shares during that particular morithe Companys obligation to purchase the Monthly Shares froniti/¢aall terminate ar
cease at such time as Waitt has received an adgregal of $1,700,000 from the sale of the Ri&mres and any deficiency (as defined i
ED Purchase Agreement).

At Closing, Waitt also entered a three (3) year Exyipent Agreement with RCI Media (the "Employmergréement") pursuant to which
will serve as President. The Employment Agreematerels through April 15, 2011, and provides foramual base salary of $250,C
Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Waitalso eligible to participate in all benefit plansintained by the Company for salai
employees. Under the terms of the Employment AgesgniMr. Waitt is bound to a confidentiality prowis and cannot compete with

Company upon the expiration of the Employment Agreset.

TEEZE/Adult Store RCI Media

Under the terms of a Purchase Agreement between Qamnetta ("Cornetta”), Waitt, RClI Media and Récklated April 15, 2008 (tl
"TEEZE/ASB Purchase Agreement”), the Company agteeghy the following consideration to Cornetta anditt for the purchase of t
TEEZE Stock and the Membership Interest:

(i) an aggregate of $200,000 cash at closing; and

(ii) the issuance of 6,522 shares of restrictedroom stock to each of Messrs. Waitt and Cornettaafoaggregate of 13,044 shares of restr
common stock to be valued at $17.01 per share'Rivd's TEEZE Shares") in accordance with EITF @9-1

Pursuant to the TEEZE/ASB Purchase Agreement, aiter one year after the closing date, each ofdkedVaitt and Cornetta shall have
right, but not the obligation to have Rick's purebghe Rick's TEEZE Shares
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS — continued

calculated at a price per share equal to $23.0Cslpare ("Value of the Rick's TEEZE Shares") untiéddrs. Waitt and Cornetta have ¢
received $150,000 (i) from the sale of the RicKEEZE Shares sold by them, regardless of whethdrtedRick's, sold in the open market @
a private transaction or otherwise, and (ii) thgrpant of any deficiency (as defined in the TEEZERABuUrchase Agreement) by Rick's. At
Companys election during any given month, the Company mietyer buy the Rick's TEEZE Shares or, if the Comypalects not to buy tl
Rick's TEEZE Shares, then Cornetta and/or Waitll sie#l the Rick's TEEZE Shares in the open markety deficiency between the amo
which Cornetta or Waitt receives from the saleh# Rick's TEEZE Shares and the Value of the RIEEEZE Shares shall be paid by
Company within three (3) business days of the datale of the Rick's TEEZE Shares during thatipaler month. The Company’obligatiol
to purchase the Rick's TEEZE Shares shall termimatecease at such time as Waitt and Cornettadetereceived $150,000 from the sal
the Rick's TEEZE Shares and any deficiency.

At Closing, Cornetta entered a five year NDampetition Agreement with the Company pursuantich he agreed not to compete with
Company either directly or indirectly with TEEZE SB, RCI Media, Rick's or any of their affiliates Ipyblishing any sexually orient
industry trade print publications, with the exceptbf a publication known as "Xcitement" which igmently owned and operated by Cornetta.

The following information summarizes the initialaation of fair values assigned to the assetsliabdities at the acquisition date based «
preliminary valuation for the ED Publications, InAdult Store Buyers LLC, and TEEZE Internationahc. acquisitions. Subsequ
adjustments may be recorded upon the completidineofaluation and the final determination of thechase price allocation.

Net current asse $ 532,77
Non-compete agreeme 100,00(
Goodwill 503,73l
Net current liabilities (66,749
Net assets acquire $ 1,069,75

The results of operations of these entities arkudiezl in the Company'’s results of operations siyogl 15, 2008.

Proforma results of operations have not been peayids the amounts were not deemed material toahsolidated financial statements.
transaction follows the Company’s growth strategy.

On June 18, 2008, the Company’s wholly owned sidsidRCI Entertainment (Northwest Highway), Inchgt“Purchaser’completed th
acquisition of certain assets (the “Purchased A¥sef North by East Entertainment, Ltd., a Texiasited partnership (the “Seller'y anc
through its general partner, Northeast PlatinumCLh Texas limited liability company (the “GeneRartner”)pursuant to an Asset Purch
Agreement dated May 10, 2008. The Seller owned ggretated an adult entertainment cabaret knowrP&gifium Club 11" (the “Club},
located at 10557 Wire Way (at Northwest HighwaydJl&s, Texas 75220 (the “Real Property”).

At closing, the Company paid a total purchase poic$1,500,000 cash for the Purchased Assets. Iéii@), the principal of the Seller ente
into a five-year agreement not to compete withGhe by operating an
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establishment with an urban theme that both sdigaer and provides live female nude or semde adult entertainment in Dallas Cou
Tarrant County, Texas or any of the adjacent cesritiereto.

As part of the transaction, the Company’s whollyned subsidiary RCI Holdings, Inc. (“RCI&so acquired the Real Property from Wire V
LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“Wire Way")Pursuant to a Real Estate Purchase and Salemgre (the “Real Estate Agreemeént”
dated May 10, 2008, RCI paid total consideratio$&{000,000, which was paid $1,650,000 in cash%&h&50,000 through the issuance
five (5) year promissory note (the “Promissory NpteThe Promissory Note bears interest at a varying aatthe greater of (i) two perc
(2%) above the Prime Rate or (ii) seven and onkgeatent (7.5%), which is guaranteed by the Comzard by Eric Langan, the Compaay’
Chief Executive Officer, individually. The Compaalso incurred $69,998 in costs, which was paickish.

The following information summarizes the initialaation of fair values assigned to the assetsliabdities at the acquisition date based «
preliminary valuation. Subsequent adjustments mayrecorded upon the completion of the valuatiod #re final determination of t
purchase price allocation.

Net current asse $ 34,07¢
Property and equipment and other as 6,000,001
Non-compete agreeme 100,00(
Goodwill 1,392,42
Other asset 43,50(
Net assets acquire $ 7,569,99

The full results of operations of this entity aneluded in the Company’s results of operationsesinme 18, 2008.

Proforma results of operations have not been peayids the amounts were not deemed material toahsolidated financial statements.
transaction follows the Company’s growth strategy.

10. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense for the years presented differa the “expected’federal income tax expense computed by applyingutg feder:
statutory rate of 34% to earnings before incomeddar the three and nine months ended June 38,20 2007 as a result of the following:
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FOR THE THREE MONTHS  FOR THE NINE MONTHS

ENDED JUNE 30 ENDED JUNE 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
Computed expected tax expel $ 1,008,15 $ 379,63¢ $ 3,063,271 $ 666,92
State income taxe 88,95¢ 33,49° 270,28¢ 58,84¢
Stock option disqualifying dispositions and othermanent difference 10,94 (230,379 (301,739 (543,01))
Net operating loss carryforwar 92,70¢ (97,909 (191,78¢) (97,909
Other (64,764) -- (48,267) --
Total income tax expen: $ 1,13599 $ 84,85¢ $ 2,791,78 $ 84,85¢

Included in the Compang’deferred tax liabilities at June 30, 2008 is appnately $14,400,000 representing the tax effééhdefinite livec
intangible assets from club acquisitions which rmoe deductible for tax purposes. These deferrediahilities will remain in the Company’
balance sheet until the related clubs are soldhprired.

11. LITIGATION
SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESS ORDINANCE OF HOUSTON, ™AS

In January 1997, the City Council of the City ofuston passed a comprehensive new Ordinance rewyldte location of and the cond
within Sexually Oriented Businesses (the “Ordindhc&he Ordinance established new minimum distancesSfaually Oriented Busines:
may be located from schools, churches, playgrowart$ other sexually oriented businesses. There wer@rovisions in the Ordinan
exempting previously permitted sexually orientedibasses from the effect of the new Ordinance.

The Ordinance provided that a business which wagdea renewal of its operating permit due to clesnig distance requirements undel
Ordinance would be entitled to continue in operafiar a period of time (the “Amortization Periodf)the owner were unable to recoup, by
effective date of the Ordinance, its investmentthe business that was incurred through the dat¢thefpassage and approval of
Ordinance. The Company’s nightclub in the Compsargduth Houston location had a valid temporary pdioense. The permits for t
Company’s north Houston location and our BeringvBlibcation have expired.

In May 1997, the City of Houston agreed to defeplementation of the Ordinance until the constitodlity of the entire Ordinance w
decided by court trial. In February 1998, the Wisstrict Court for the Southern District of Texddpuston Division, struck down cert:
provisions of the Ordinance, including the provisimandating a 1,500 foot distance between a clabsahools, churches and other sext
oriented businesses, lleaving intact the provisibthe 750 foot distance as it existed prior to @éinance. The City of Houston appealec
District Court’s rulings with the Fifth Circuit Couof Appeals.

In November 2003, a three judge panel from thenRfircuit Court of Appeals published their Opinishich affirmed the Trial Cour$ ruling

regarding lighting levels, customer and dancer i distances and licensing of dancers and.sfdfe Court of Appeals, however, did
follow the Trial Court’s ruling regarding
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the distance from which a club may be located feoshurch or school. The Court of Appeals held ¢hdistance measurement of 1,500
would be upheld upon a showing by the City of Hondhat its claims that there were alternativess#teailable for relocating clubs could
substantiated. The case was remanded for triti@issues of the alternative sites.

The trial commenced on December 4, 2006 and coadloth December 12, 2006. The Trial Court rendasgjddgment in favor of the City
Houston on January 31, 2007. The Trial Court fotlvad the City of Houston met its burden that theege sufficient alternate sites availabl
relocate all of the existing businesses in 199Fe Trial Court found the 1997 ordinance constingicand enforceable. Pdsial motions wer
heard and the relief sought, a stay against enfogog was denied by the Trial Court. An appeath® Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals w
timely filed. The Fifth Circuit granted a stagmiling appeal. Oral argument was held before tiftle Eircuit Court of Appeals on August
2007. The Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals ruledfavor of the City of Houston in September 2007eddings were filed seeking a stay agi
enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance wfith United States Supreme Court in conjunctiorn whie request that the United St
Supreme Court hear an appeal of the Fifth Circoitir€of Appeals ruling. Neither relief nor any ioation of the Supreme Coustposition o
the appeal has been received to date.

Additionally, the Company filed on behalf of threEour club locations in Houston state court lawsssieeking judicial review of the results
the amortization process contained within the Cadoe. The amortization process was abated in 88880 the possible multiplicity of co
actions. The final order by the Trial Court resdltin the termination of the abatement and allottedamortization process to continue
provided in the Ordinance. Trial on the amortiaatcases was held on April 23 and 24, 2008. Attrelusion of the trial, the Court ruled t
the amortization awards were proper and requestat Rindings of Fact and Conclusions of Law be dgttbth to the Court as well as
Judgment in the case. A form of judgment has leedered by the Court. The amortization award periwave already expired for the affec
clubs. An appeal of the amortization review by Heris County District Court is being preparedeTdiubs are currently seeking a sta
enforcement during the appeal. In the event &liresf to stop enforcement activity fail and theyGif Houston elects to enforce the judgm
the Company, as well as every other similarly sédasexually oriented business located within tieiporated area of Houston, Texas,
have to either cease providing nude or seude entertainment or develop alternate methodepefating. In such event, the Comp
presently intends to clothe the Companghtertainers in a manner to eliminate the neelicEnses and to take such steps as to not becut
SOB ordinance compliance which we have in threeuflocations. Approximately 10.6% of the Compangfub operatiors revenues for tl
nine months ended June 30, 2008 were in HoustomgsTeThe ruling could have a material adverse ahpa the Compang’ operations, but
is unknown at this time.

Texas State Patron Tax

Beginning January 1, 2008, the Companyéxas clubs became subject to a new state lavirirggjeach club to collect a $5 surcharge for ¢
club visitor. A lawsuit was filed by the Texas Erthinment Association, an organization to which @ompany is a member, alleging the
amounts to be an unconstitutional tax. On March22®8, a State District Court Judge in Travis Gpumexas ruled that the new state
violates the First Amendment to the United Statesdfitution and is therefore invalid. The judgerder enjoined the State from collectin
assessing the tax. The State has appealed thgsaoling. In Texas, when cities or
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the State give notice of appeal, it supersedessaspends the judgment, including the injunctioheréfore, the judgment of the District Cc
cannot be enforced until the appeals are compleBden the suspension of the judgment, the Stasedpted to collect the tax pending
appeal. The Company has paid the tax for the fivst calendar quarters under protest and expersedak in the accompanying finan
statements. The Company has filed a lawsuit agtiesState to demand repayment of the taxes.

12. POTENTIAL ACQUISITION
Las Vegas Club Acquisition

On April 17, 2008, the Company entered into an ABsgchase Agreement (the "Asset Purchase Agreépmamsuant to the terms of whi
the Companys subsidiary, RCI Entertainment (Las Vegas), Itite ((Purchaser”), will acquire 100% of the ass#ts (Purchased Assets")
DI Food and Beverage of Las Vegas, LLC, a Nevadédd liability company ("DI Food" or the "Sellertywned by it which are associatec
used in connection with the operation of an adutegainment cabaret known as "SCORES" (the "Clubtated at 3355 Procyon Street,
Vegas, Nevada 89102 (the "Real Property"). As pitthe transaction, the Purchaser and DI Foodalslb enter into an Option Agreement
"Option Agreement") pursuant to which either partgty exercise the option to purchase the Real Pxoper

On June 30, 2008, the Company entered into a Sedorehdment to Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Segonendment”)to change tt
structure of the Purchase Price, to change théngakate and to change the termination date. Ruatdo the terms of the Second Amendn
the Purchase Price shall be paid as follows:

0] $12,000,000 payable by casl's check, certified funds or wire transf

(i) $4,000,000 pursuant to a promissory note “Rick’s Promissory No"), executed by and obligating the Company, bee
interest at eight percent (8%) per annum with a {B&) year amortization, with monthly payments whg@pal and interest to
commence upon the first of the month following @lesing, with a balloon payment of all then outsliag principal and
interest due upon the expiration of two (2) yeapsifthe execution of the Ri’s Promissory Note

(iii) $5,000,000 as evidenced by a Convertible DebewtuRick’s bearing simple interest of four percef) per annum (the
“Convertible Debenture”). The Convertible Debestshall be payable commencing seven (7) monthstafteClosing Date
(as defined herein) as follows: Twenty-five (2§ual monthly principal payments of $200,000 in casby the conversion
of 10,000 shares of the Company’s common stockyalaie $0.01, at the option of the holder of then@atible Debenture,
plus interest payable in cas

The (i) $12,000,000 cash payment, (ii) the RécFPromissory Note, and (iii) the Convertible Deleatare collectively referred to as
“Purchase Price.”

Further, pursuant to the terms of the Second Amemdnthe Closing shall take place the later of(iy 25, 2008 or (ii) five (5) days followil
(x) the approval and issuance to Purchaser ofiteades and authorizations and (y) receipt of #sggament of the Lease (the “Closing Date”).

26




Table of Contents

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008
13. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
In July 2008, the holder of convertible debenturesverted his warrants and debentures of $660,0@050,000 and 220,000 shares of
Company'’s restricted common stock, respectively.

ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Opations.

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our audited consolidated financial statatseand related notes thereto included in
this quarterly report.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT AND INFORMATION

The Company is including the following cautionatgtement in this Form 1QSB to make applicable and take advantage of tfeetsabo
provision of the Private Securities Litigation Refo Act of 1995 for any forwardboking statements made by, or on behalf of,
Company. Forwardboking statements include statements concerniagsplobjectives, goals, strategies, future eventgsedformance ar
underlying assumptions and other statements, wéniehother than statements of historical facts.talresstatements in this Form 1IP8B arn
forward-looking statements. Words such as "expetelieves,” "anticipates,"rthay," and "estimates" and similar expressions rtended t
identify forwardiooking statements. Such statements are subjetske and uncertainties that could cause actuallteeto differ materiall
from those projected. Such risks and uncertairgiesset forth below. The Company's expectatibeefs and projections are expresse
good faith and are believed by the Company to feveasonable basis, including without limitatioramagement's examination of histor
operating trends, data contained in the Comparmgerds and other data available from third partieg, there can be no assurance
management's expectation, beliefs or projectiotisregult, be achieved, or be accomplished. Initaadto other factors and matters discu
elsewhere herein, the following are important festiat, in the view of the Company, could caus¢enel adverse affects on the Compa
financial condition and results of operations: tis&s and uncertainties relating to our Internetgragions, the impact and implementation of
sexually oriented business ordinances in the jigtieths where our facilities operate, competitiaetbrs, the timing of the openings of o
clubs, the availability of acceptable financingftod corporate expansion efforts, and the deperalendkey personnel. The Company ha
obligation to update or revise these forward-logkitatements to reflect the occurrence of futuenessor circumstances.
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As of June 30, 2008, we conducted our businedwéetdifferent areas of operation:

1. We own and operate upscale adult nightclubsregprimarily businessmen and professionals. @ghtclubs offer live adult entertainme
restaurant and bar operations. We own and opewvated adult nightclubs under the name "Rick's Catiand "XTC" in Houston, Austin, Fc
Worth, Dallas and San Antonio, Texas; Minneapd&nesota; New York, New York, and PhiladelphiapRgylvania. We also operate f
upscale venues that cater especially to urban gsufieals, businessmen and professional athletlegicaClub Onyx "in Houston and Dalla
Texas and Charlotte, North Carolina. In Augusf)20ve converted our Club Onyx location in San Ao Texas to "Encounters," which i
club for adults who enjoy alternative lifestyleSurrently, our newly acquired club in Miami GardeRkrida, operates as “ Tootsies Cabaret. “

2. We have the following Internet activities:

a) We currently own two adult Internet membership Wsiles at www.couplestouch.coamd www.xxxpassword.com We acquir
www.xxxpassword.corsite content from wholesalel

b) We operate an online auction site www.naughtybats.c This site provides our customers with the oppaty to purchase adi
products and services in an auction format. Wa earenues by charging fees for each transactinduied on the automated s

3. In April 2008, we acquired a media divisiongluding the leading trade magazine serving the inbillion dollar adult nightclubs industi
As part of the transaction we also acquired twaigtgy trade shows, two other industry trade pulibces and more than 25 industry websites.

Our nightclub revenues are derived from the saldicqufor, beer, wine, food, merchandise, cover caargnembership fees, indepen:
contractors' fees, commissions from vending and Afischines, valet parking, and other products amdcgs. Our internet revenues
derived from subscriptions to adult content intérwebsites, traffic/referral revenues, and commissiearned on the sale of products
services through Internet auction sites, and o#fotivities. Our media division revenues are detipeincipally from advertising, sponsor
and renting booths in trade shows, and magazinscsiptions. Our fiscal year end is September 30.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 AS COMPARED TO THE THREE MONTHSE
ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

For the three months ended June 30, 2008, we hasblidated total revenues of $16,278,461 compamedohsolidated total revenues
$8,446,351 for the three months ended June 30,,28®7ncrease of $7,832,110 or 92.73%. The ineréadotal revenues was prima
attributable to the increase in revenues genefatezlir new clubs in Dallas, Texas, Philadelphiay@glvania, and Miami Gardens, Florid:
the amount of $6,790,991 and by the increase iemaes generated by our other locations in the ataf$856,115, an 10.37% increase; f
our media group in the amount of $182,452, and fioi@rnet operations in the amount of $2,552 a %.33crease, from a year agorotal
revenues for same-location-sameriod of club operations increased to $8,079,&f2fe three months ended June 30, 2008 from $48¢
for same period ended June 30, 2007, an 8.45%asereThe increase was primarily attributable &odberall increase in revenues in our
operations.

The cost of goods sold for the three months ended 30, 2008 was 11.68% of total revenues comparé@.76% for the three months en
June 30, 2007. The decrease was due primarilyet@bility to obtain volume discounts, especiathyour club in Miami Gardens. The cos
goods sold for the club operations for the threatin® ended June 30, 2008 was 11.53% compared3G@%Zor the three months ended
30, 2007. The cost of goods sold from our inteoperations for the three months ended June 3@ 2@8 2.33% compared to 6.35% for
three months ended June 30, 2007. The cost ofsgeald from our media group for the three monthdednJune 30, 2008 was 34.87%.
cost of goods sold for same-location-sapeeiod of club operations for the three months dnilene 30, 2008 was 11.42%, compared to 12
for the same period ended June 30, 2007.
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Payroll and related costs for the three months @éddee 30, 2008 were $3,856,733 compared to $53238or the three months ended June
2007. The increase was primarily due to additibthe new clubs and purchase of the media growyrdfl for same-location-samgeriod o
club operations increased to $1,771,156 for theethmonths ended June 30, 2008 from $1,694,558hforsame period ended June
2007. Management currently believes that its lamat management staff levels are appropriate.

Other general and administrative expenses for iheetmonths ended June 30, 2008 were $6,803,03pacethto $3,817,958 for the th
months ended June 30, 2007. The increase wadicintly the result of the addition of new locatsim Miami Gardens, Florida, Philadelpl
Pennsylvania, and Dallas, Texas, and purchase ofmedia group, which resulted in increases in tasd permits, charge card fees, 1
advertising and marketing, legal and professiomalirect operating expenses, and utilities. Thieeeeased expenses were also a resi
increased revenues from our operations.

Interest expense for the three months ended Jun20B8 was $700,788 compared to $345,130 for treetmonths ended June 30, 2007.
increase was attributable to our obtaining new tielihance the purchase and renovation of the clabs. As of June 30, 2008, the balanc
long-term debt was $31,699,060 compared to $140825 year earlier.

Net income for the three months ended June 30, 2@38%$1,829,204 compared to $1,031,727 for thesthrenths ended June 30, 2007.
increase in net income was primarily due to thedase in revenues generated by our same-locationeseriod club operations and by
new clubs in Miami Gardens, Florida and Fort Woikexas. Income before income taxes for same-locagameperiod of club operatiol
increased to $1,702,371 for the three months edded 30, 2008 from $1,427,607 for the same pemoee June 30, 2007, or by 19.25%.

Results of operations for the quarter ended Jun@@@B were materially affected by certain dimee events: startup costs at two new clut
Philadelphia and Dallas, non-recovery of the Tepatson tax in April and timingelated losses in our media division. Followingiisummar
of these costs:

Startup losses

Philadelphie $ 350,00(
Dallas 175,00(
Non-recovery of patron ta 125,00(
Losses in media divisia 125,00(
Total $ 775,00(

The Philadelphia and Rick’s Dallas clubs will in@dditional rampip costs in the next quarter but should begin tdrdmute to profits in th
last calendar quarter of 2008.

The Company did not recover the Texas patron tax ftustomers during the month of April after a &@istrict Court Judge in Travis Cour
Texas ruled that the new state law violates thst imendment to the United States Constitutioniartderefore invalid. The Company did
recover the tax from customers in April becausejildge’s order enjoined the State from collecting or asiegshe tax. The State has appe
the courts ruling. In Texas, when cities or the State ghatice of appeal, it supersedes and suspends tigmpnt, including tt
injunction. Therefore, the judgment of the Didtriéourt cannot be enforced until the appeals arapteted. Given the suspension of
judgment, the State has opted to collect the tandipg the appeal. The Company has paid the taxh@rfirst two calendar quarters un
protest and expensed the tax in the accompanymagdial statements, amounting to $957,100 for thenenths of 2008. The Company
filed a lawsuit against the State to demand repaymiethe taxes.
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The media division had only one publication per arge in the quarter, whereas the next quarterhaie two publications each, along v
the annual Expo. Certain Expo and magazine exgemsest be recognized on a current basis while éhenues are not recognized until
event or publication of the magazine.

The Companys earnings per share were also affected by thé@6U@Zhares issued in June 2008 to finance thepmasion of the pending Li
Vegas acquisition, which has not closed as of Aufids 2008. These shares increased the weightsdge shares outstanding for the qu
although the benefit from the acquisition will ro& realized until after the transaction has beenpteted.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 AS COMPARED TO THE NINE MONTHSE
ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

For the nine months ended June 30, 2008, we hasotidated total revenues of $42,697,060 comparedotesolidated total revenues
$23,045,697 for the nine months ended June 30,,28@7ncrease of $19,651,363 or 85.27%. The iserea total revenues was prima
attributable to the increase in revenues genetatenlir new clubs in Miami Gardens, Florida, Philatiea, Pennsylvania and Dallas, Texa
the amount of $14,954,494 and by the increasevienges generated by our other locations in the amofu$4,533,844, a 20.16% incre
from our media group in the amount of $182,452seifby the decrease in internet operations intieuat of $19,427, a 3.49% decrease,
a year ago. Total revenues for same-location-ga@ned of club operations increased to $23,815f85%he nine months ended June 30, ?
from $21,666,504 for same period ended June 307,20®.92% increase. The increase was primaritibatable to the overall increase
revenues in our club operations.

The cost of goods sold for the nine months endeé 30, 2008 was 11.42% of total revenues compard@.72% for the nine months en
June 30, 2007. The decrease was due primarilyet@bility to obtain volume discounts, especiafiyour club in Miami Gardens. The cos
goods sold for the club operations for the nine theended June 30, 2008 was 11.43% compared t3%X@ the nine months ended June
2007. The cost of goods sold from our internetrapens for the nine months ended June 30, 2008281 compared to 6.90% for the r
months ended June 30, 2007. The cost of goodsfmwtdour media group for the nine months endec B 2008 was 34.87%. The cos
goods sold for same-location-saperiod of club operations for the nine months endlgtk 30, 2008 was 11.52%, compared to 12.77%é
same period ended June 30, 2007.

Payroll and related costs for the nine months edde@ 30, 2008 were $9,740,367 compared to $6,2B5 the nine months ended June
2007. The increase was primarily due to additibthe new clubs and purchase of our media growgyrdfl for same-location-samgeriod o
club operations increased to $5,174,921 for thes mironths ended June 30, 2008 from $5,120,406 forsime period ended June
2007. Management currently believes that its lamar management staff levels are appropriate.

Other general and administrative expenses for the months ended June 30, 2008 were $17,427,33%arewn to $11,022,757 for the n
months ended June 30, 2007. The increase wadicintly the result of the addition of new locatsim Miami Gardens, Florida, Philadelpl
Pennsylvania, and Dallas, Texas, and purchase rofmedia group, which resulted in increases in tasd permits, charge card fees, 1
advertising and marketing, legal and professioimalirect operating expenses, insurance, and aslitiThese increased expenses were i
result of increased revenues from our operations.
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Interest expense for the nine months ended Jun20B® was $1,839,344 compared to $999,146 for ithee months ended June 30, 2007.
increase was attributable to our obtaining new ttefihance the purchase and renovation of the ciabs.

Net income for the nine months ended June 30, 2088%$6,217,856 compared to $1,876,691 for the mapths ended June 30, 2007.
increase in net income was primarily due to thedase in revenues generated by our same-locationefseriod club operations and by ¢
new clubs in Miami Gardens, Florida and Fort Woikexas. Income before income taxes for same-locatameperiod of club operatiol
increased to $4,984,704 for the nine months ended 30, 2008 from $3,420,377 for same period eddeé 30, 2007, or by 45.74%.

Results of operations for the quarter ended Jun@@@B were materially affected by certain dimee events: startup costs at two new clut
Philadelphia and Dallas, non-recovery of the Teatson tax in April and timingelated losses in our media division. Followingiisummar
of these costs:

Startup losses

Philadelphie $ 350,00(
Dallas 175,00(
Non-recovery of patron ta 125,00(
Losses in media division 125,00(
Total $ 775,00(

The Philadelphia and Rick’s Dallas clubs will in@dditional rampip costs in the next quarter but should begin tdrdmute to profits in th
last calendar quarter of 2008.

The Company did not recover the Texas patron tax ftustomers during the month of April after a &@istrict Court Judge in Travis Cour
Texas ruled that the new state law violates thet imendment to the United States Constitutionianiderefore invalid. The Company did
recover the tax from customers in April becausejildge’s order enjoined the State from collecting or asiegshe tax. The State has appe
the courts ruling. In Texas, when cities or the State giaice of appeal, it supersedes and suspends tigmpnt, including tF
injunction. Therefore, the judgment of the Didtriéourt cannot be enforced until the appeals arapteted. Given the suspension of
judgment, the State has opted to collect the tandipg the appeal. The Company has paid the taxh@ffirst two calendar quarters un
protest and expensed the tax in the accompanymagdial statements, amounting to $957,100 for ithenenths of 2008. The Company
filed a lawsuit against the State to demand repaymithe taxes.

The media division had only one publication per arge in the quarter, whereas the next quarterhaie two publications each, along v
the annual Expo. Certain Expo and magazine expemsist be recognized on a current basis while ékenues are not recognized until
event or publication of the magazine.

The Companys earnings per share were also affected by thé@6U@Zhares issued in June 2008 to finance thepmasion of the pending Li
Vegas acquisition, which has not closed as of Aufgids 2008. These shares increased the weightsdge shares outstanding for the qu
although the benefit from the acquisition will gt realized until after the transaction has beenpteted.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At June 30, 2008, we had working capital of $11,022 compared to a deficit of $2,792,577 at Septrdb, 2007. The increase in work
capital was primarily due to increases in casheagh equivalents, accounts receivalifade, inventory, prepaid expenses, other curreset
and a decrease in current portion of ldagn debts, offset by increases in accounts payaideaccrued liabilities as a result of increaszst
flow from operations, stock option exercises, ldagn debt borrowings, and most substantially by mam stock issuances. The valut
available-for-sale marketable securities decrebygefBB1,143 for the nine months ended in June 30320
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Net cash provided by operating activities in theeninonths ended June 30, 2008 was $9,857,401 cechpafs2,652,237 for the nine mor
ended June 30, 2007. The increase in cash probigegerating activities was primarily due to inafrom operations excluding depreciati

We used $26,242,277 of cash in investing activiiesng the nine months ended June 30, 2008 cordpar$6,214,121 during the nine mor
ended June 30, 2007. The increase was princigalyto the acquisition of the clubs in Miami GarglelRlorida, Philadelphia, Pennsylva
and Dallas, Texas. Cash of $26,577,205 was prdvige financing activities during the nine monthsded June 30, 2008 comparec
$4,885,742 cash provided during the nine monthe@rdine 30, 2007. The increase in cash providefthbgicing activities is primarily tt
result of common stock issuances to raise capitaidquiring the Florida club and for future acdioss.

We require capital principally for construction acquisition of new clubs, renovation of older cli=l investments in technology. We 1
also utilize capital to repurchase our common stxkart of our share repurchase program.

Included in our deferred tax liabilities at Jung 2008 is approximately $14,400,000 representimgtéx effect of indefinite lived intangit
assets from club acquisitions, which are not dellecfor tax purposes. These deferred tax lidbgitvill remain in our balance sheet until
related clubs are sold.

On November 19, 2007, we completed a private placemf equity securities solely to accredited itwes Pursuant to the private placerr
we issued 1,165,000 shares of our restricted constamk at a price of $14.00 per share for a tatasg offering price of $16,310,000 with
proceeds of approximately $15,000,000 to us afkperses. Pursuant to the terms of the transactienfiled a registration statement
February 14, 2008, which became effective Febr@@r2008. The offer and sale of the common stoak made pursuant to exemptions f
the registration requirements of the Act pursuanBeéction 4(2) and Rule 506 of Regulation D proratdd thereunder. All of the offers ¢
sales of the common stock were made exclusivel\atoredited investors”as such term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regutab)) in offer:
and sales not involving a public offering. The ghasers purchased the securities for their ownuetcand not with a view towards or
resale. The private placement was conducted withenéral solicitation or advertising.

On June 12, 2008, we completed the private placeofe$i’2,000 shares of our restricted common stodkstitutional investors at a price
$20.00 per share for gross proceeds of $13,440MB0net proceeds of approximately $12,375,0004after expenses. The common s
was sold under the exemption from registration ed by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1@8@l the rules and regulations promulg
thereunder. All of the offers and sales of the omn stock were made exclusively to “accredited s#toes” @s such term is defined in R
501(a) of Regulation D) in offers and sales nobiming a public offering. The purchasers in thevate placement purchased the securitie
their own account and not with a view towards arrésale. The private placement was conducted witgeneral solicitation or advertising.

We have not established lines of credit or finagaither than the above mentioned notes payableoanexisting debt. There can be
assurance that we will be able to obtain additidinaincing on reasonable terms in the future, dlhtshould the need arise.
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On September 16, 2003, we were authorized by oardbof directors to repurchase up to an additi®%0,000 worth of our comm
stock. No shares have been purchased under #his pl

We believe that the adult entertainment industgngard of treating entertainers as independentraxtots provides us with safe har
protection to preclude payroll tax assessment fmr [years. We have prepared plans that we belgllgrotect our profitability in the eve
that sexually oriented business industry is reguineall states to convert dancers who are nowgaddent contractors into employees.

The sexually oriented business industry is higldynpetitive with respect to price, service and lmrgtas well as the professionalism of
entertainment. Although management believes tieaaine wellpositioned to compete successfully in the futunereé can be no assurance
we will be able to maintain our high level of nareeognition and prestige within the marketplace.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

We have not experienced a material overall impamnfinflation in our operations during the pastesal years. To the extent permittec
competition, we have managed to recover increassts ahrough price increases and may continue tsadoHowever, there can be
assurance that we will be able to do so in theréutu

SEASONALITY

Our nightclub operations are affected by seasazbfs. Historically, we have experienced redusaenues from April through Septem
with the strongest operating results occurringriyi®ctober through March. Our experience to dadécates that there does not appear to
seasonal fluctuation in our Internet activities.

Our media division experiences fluctuations in rexes and profits based on dates of publicatiomearfazines and presentation of the ar
expo. The first and third calendar quarters wilimally reflect higher revenues and profits in tHigision than the second and fourth cale:
quarters.

GROWTH STRATEGY

We believe that our nightclub operations can camito grow organically and through careful entripimarkets and demographic segm
with high growth potential. Our growth strategy (ia) to open new clubs after careful market redegb) to acquire existing clubs in locati
that are consistent with our growth and incomeetr@nd which appear receptive to the upscalefolubula we have developed, as is the
with the acquisitions of the clubs in Austin, Dalland Fort Worth, Texas, Miami Gardens, Floridge Bhiladelphia, Pennsylvania; (c) to fc
joint ventures or partnerships to reduce -up and operating costs, with us contributing eqintthe form of our brand name and manage
expertise; (d) to develop new club concepts thatcansistent with our management and marketinggskd) to acquire real estate in connec
with club operations, although some clubs may Heased premises; and/or (f) to enter into licemsigreements in strategic locations, as i
case with the license agreement with Rick’s Buekioss Sociedad Anonima in Argentina.

Thus far, during fiscal year 2008, we purchased foightclub operations, the remaining 49% of anotbleb, and a media group
$52,845,641. The acquisitions were funded asval0$23,464,194 in cash, $17,990,000 pursuant to fecured promissory notes: two in
amount of $5,000,000 each to the sellers and twtbdramounts of $3,640,000 and $4,350,000 to adiahinstitution, $10,435,000 in 440,(
shares of common stock, $701,711 in debt forgivengsis estimated transaction costs of $241,14#.thHe nine months ended June 30, 2
the four acquired nightclubs had total revenuesppiroximately $14,954,000 and income before inctamef approximately $5,638,000.
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During fiscal year 2007, we purchased two nightaplkerations for $9,033,877. The acquisitions vieneled by the issuance of 125,000 sk
of our restricted common stock, $5,500,000 in casth $2,400,000 in debt. For the nine months eddeé 30, 2008, the nightclubs had 1
revenues of approximately $3,968,000 and a netdefire income tax of approximately $151,000.

During fiscal 2006, we acquired three existing mifjib operations for a total cost of $3,865,00(hede acquisitions were funded prime
through indebtedness, $3,195,000, and cash, $6870dr the nine months ended June 30, 2008, thighéclub operations had total reven
of approximately $1,883,000 and a net loss of agprately $610,000.

We continue to evaluate opportunities to acquirg nghtclubs and anticipate acquiring new locatitmet fit our business model as we t
done in the past.

We also expect to continue to grow our Internefipoenters. We plan to focus on highargin Internet activities that leverage our marig
skills while requiring a low level of stattp cost and ongoing operating costs and refinetand our Internet sites for better positionin
organic search rankings amongst the major seamhdars. We will restructure affiliate programspmovide higher incentives to our curr
affiliates to better promote our Internet sitesjlevhctively seeking new affiliates to send trafficour Internet sites.

In April 2008, we acquired a media group which vedidwve will enable us to (a) create new marketipigesgies with major industry prodi
suppliers; (b) expand our brand awareness throaghgrships with national advertisers and liquanpanies; (c) set up point of sale marke
in conjunction with print advertising; (d) improwailk liquor pricing; and (e) diversify our revenard income streams while remaining wi
our core competency. In conjunction with the tearti®n, we also acquired numerous websites thaviecorporate into our internet divisis
to increase our brand awareness and potential uegen

The acquisition of additional clubs, internet opienas, and/or other operations will require us tmain additional debt or issuance of
common stock, or both. There can be no assurdateve will be able to obtain additional financioig reasonable terms in the future, if at
should the need arise. An inability to obtain sadhitional financing could have an adverse effecour growth strategy.

Potential Acquisition
Las Vegas Club Acquisition

On April 17, 2008, we entered into an Asset PurehAgreement (the "Asset Purchase Agreement") potstathe terms of whic
our subsidiary, RCI Entertainment (Las Vegas), (tlee "Purchaser"), will acquire 100% of the asgtte "Purchased Assets") of DI Food
Beverage of Las Vegas, LLC, a Nevada limited ligbitompany ("DI Food" or the "Seller") owned byvithich are associated or uset
connection with the operation of an adult entertant cabaret known as "SCORES" (the "Club"), latate3355 Procyon Street, Las Ve
Nevada 89102 (the "Real Property"). As part of ttesaction, the Purchaser and DI Food will alsteremto an Option Agreement (i
"Option Agreement") pursuant to which either parigty exercise the option to purchase the Real Pxoper

On June 30, 2008, we entered into a Second Amendmésset Purchase Agreement (the “Second Amentljinienchange the structure of
Purchase Price, to change the closing date antaoge the termination date. Pursuant to the tefitise Second Amendment, the Purcl
Price shall be paid as follows:

0] $12,000,000 payable by casl's check, certified funds or wire transf

(i) $4,000,000 pursuant to a promissory note (the “RiBkomissory Note”), executed by and obligatinghesaring interest at
eight percent (8%) per annum with a five (5) yaapdization, with monthly payments of principal ainterest to commence
upon the first of the month following the Closingjth a balloon payment of all then outstanding gipal and interest due
upon the expiration of two (2) years from the extexuof the Ricl's Promissory Note

(iii) $5,000,000 as evidenced by a Convertible DebewtuRick' s bearing simple interest of four percent (4%)garum (the
“Convertible Debenture”). The Convertible Debeptshall be payable commencing seven (7) monthstaieClosing Date
(as defined herein) as follows: Twenty-five (2§ual monthly principal payments of $200,000 in casby the conversion
of 10,000 shares of our common stock, par valu@l$@&t the option of the holder of the Convertibibenture, plus interest
payable in cast
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The (i) $12,000,000 cash payment, (ii) the RécPromissory Note, and (iii) the Convertible Delbeatare collectively referred to as
“Purchase Price.”

Further, pursuant to the terms of the Second Amemtinthe Closing shall take place the later o8y 25, 2008 or (ii) five (5) days followil
(x) the approval and issuance to Purchaser ofitbades and authorizations and (y) receipt of #sggament of the Lease (the “Closing Date”).

Subsequent Event

In July 2008, the holder of convertible debenturesverted his warrants and debentures of $660,0@050,000 and 220,000 shares of
restricted common stock, respectively.

Item 3. Controls and Procedures

Eric S. Langan, our Chief Executive Officer and ditent, and Phillip K. Marshall, our Chief Finarlc@fficer, have concluded that c
disclosure controls and procedures are appropaiadecffective. They have evaluated these conamodsprocedures as of June 30, 2008. 1
has been no change in our internal control ovenfamal reporting during the last fiscal quartertthas materially affected, or is reason:i
likely to materially affect, our internal controber financial reporting.

PART Il OTHER IIRORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESS ORDINANCE OF HOUSTON, ®AS

In January 1997, the City Council of the City ofddton passed a comprehensive new Ordinance reguldie location of and the cond
within Sexually Oriented Businesses (the “Ordindhc&he Ordinance established new minimum distancesSfaually Oriented Busines:
may be located from schools, churches, playgrowart$ other sexually oriented businesses. There wer@rovisions in the Ordinan
exempting previously permitted sexually orientedibasses from the effect of the new Ordinance.

The Ordinance provided that a business which wagdea renewal of its operating permit due to clesnig distance requirements undel
Ordinance would be entitled to continue in operafiar a period of time (the “Amortization Periodf)the owner were unable to recoup, by
effective date of the Ordinance, its investmentthe business that was incurred through the dat¢thefpassage and approval of
Ordinance. The Company’s nightclub in the Comparsouth Houston location had a valid temporary fdicense. The permits for t
Company’s north Houston location and our BeringvBibcation have expired.
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In May 1997, the City of Houston agreed to defeplementation of the Ordinance until the constitodlity of the entire Ordinance w
decided by court trial. In February 1998, the Wikstrict Court for the Southern District of Texddpuston Division, struck down cert:
provisions of the Ordinance, including the prowisimandating a 1,500 foot distance between a clabsahools, churches and other sext
oriented businesses, leaving intact the provisiothe 750 foot distance as it existed prior to @relinance. The City of Houston appealec
District Court’s rulings with the Fifth Circuit Couof Appeals.

In November 2003, a three judge panel from thenRfircuit Court of Appeals published their Opinishich affirmed the Trial Cour$ ruling
regarding lighting levels, customer and dancer isgjmen distances and licensing of dancers and.sfie Court of Appeals, however, did
follow the Trial Courts ruling regarding the distance from which a cluyrbe located from a church or school. The Colu#tppeals held thi
a distance measurement of 1,500 feet would be dpln a showing by the City of Houston that iirols that there were alternative <
available for relocating clubs could be substaatlat The case was remanded for trial on the issiuéhe alternative sites.

The trial commenced on December 4, 2006 and coadloth December 12, 2006. The Trial Court rendasgjddgment in favor of the City
Houston on January 31, 2007. The Trial Court fotlvad the City of Houston met its burden that the@eee sufficient alternate sites availabl
relocate all of the existing businesses in 199He Trial Court found the 1997 ordinance constingicand enforceable. Pdsial motions wer
heard and the relief sought, a stay against enfogogé was denied by the Trial Court. An appeatht Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals w
timely filed. The Fifth Circuit granted a stagmiing appeal. Oral argument was held before iftle €ircuit Court of Appeals on August
2007. The Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals ruledfavor of the City of Houston in September 2007eddings were filed seeking a stay ag:
enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance wfita United States Supreme Court in conjunctiorn lite request that the United St
Supreme Court hear an appeal of the Fifth Circoir€of Appeals ruling. Neither relief nor any ication of the Supreme Coustposition o
the appeal has been received to date.

Additionally, the Company filed on behalf of threEour club locations in Houston state court lawsgieeking judicial review of the results
the amortization process contained within the Cadoe. The amortization process was abated in 88880 the possible multiplicity of co
actions. The final order by the Trial Court resdlin the termination of the abatement and allottedamortization process to continue
provided in the Ordinance. Trial on the amortizatcases was held on April 23 and 24, 2008. Attrelusion of the trial, the Court ruled t
the amortization awards were proper and requestat Rindings of Fact and Conclusions of Law be dgttboh to the Court as well as
Judgment in the case. A form of judgment has leeeered by the Court. The amortization award psriwalve already expired for the affec
clubs. An appeal of the amortization review by Herris County District Court is being preparedeTdiubs are currently seeking a sta
enforcement during the appeal. In the event &iresf to stop enforcement activity fail and theyGif Houston elects to enforce the judgm
the Company, as well as every other similarly $gédasexually oriented business located within tieiporated area of Houston, Texas,
have to either cease providing nude or seuode entertainment or develop alternate methodepefating. In such event, the Comp
presently intends to clothe the Companghtertainers in a manner to eliminate the neelicnses and to take such steps as to not bedut
SOB ordinance compliance which we have in threeurflocations. Approximately 10.6% of the Compangfub operatiors revenues for tl
nine months ended June 30, 2008 were in HoustomgsTeThe ruling could have a material adverse ahpa the Compang’ operations, but
is unknown at this time.

TEXAS STATE PATRON TAX

Beginning January 1, 2008, our Texas clubs becamgd to a new state law requiring each club tilecba $5 surcharge for every c
visitor. A lawsuit was filed by the Texas Ententaient Association, an organization to which wearaember, alleging the fee amounts t
an unconstitutional tax. On March 28, 2008, aeSEistrict Court Judge in Travis County, Texas dulleat the new state law violates the |
Amendment to the United States Constitution anthésefore invalid. The judgs’order enjoined the State from collecting or asiagsthe
tax. The State has appealed the ceurling. In Texas, when cities or the State giodce of appeal, it supersedes and suspendsdgengnt
including the injunction. Therefore, the judgmehthe District Court cannot be enforced until #ppeals are completed. Given the suspe
of the judgment, the State has opted to collectakgpending the appeal. We have paid the tathiffirst two calendar quarters under prc
and expensed the tax in the accompanying finastagééments. We have filed a lawsuit against taéeSb demand repayment of the taxes.
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ltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds

During our quarter ended June 30, 2008, in additiorthe transaction previously disclosed on Forr{,8ve completed the followir
transactions in reliance upon exemptions from tegfien under the Securities Act of 1933, as amédrtiee "Act") as provided in Section 4
thereof. All certificates issued in connection witiese transactions were endorsed with a resgitéigend confirming that the securities ct
not be resold without registration under the Actaor applicable exemption from the registration meuents of the Act. None of t
transactions involved a public offering, undervmgtidiscounts or sales commissions. We believedheah person was a “qualifiedivesto
within the meaning of the Act and had knowledge axplerience in financial and business matters, whlowed them to evaluate the me
and risks of our securities. Each person was kmigdable about our operations and financial conditio

In April 2008, the holders of convertible debentucenverted $825,000 into 125,953 shares of thep@aygt restricted common stock. Als¢
different holder of convertible debentures conwef24,932 of interest payment into 2,078 shareh@fCompany’s restricted common stock.

ltem 6. Exhibits .

Exhibit 31.1— Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Rick'Cabaret International, Inc. required by Rule £3a(1) or Rule 15d 44(a) o
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adoptesiyamt to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AcDOR2

Exhibit 31.2— Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Rick’Cabaret International, Inc. required by Rule £3a1(1) or Rule 15d 44(a) o
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adoptesiyamt to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AcDOR2

Exhibit 32.1-- Certification of Chief Executive Officer of RitkCabaret International, Inc. pursuant to Secfi6f of the Sarbanedxley Acl
of 2002 and Section 1350 of 18 U.S.C. 63.

Exhibit 32.2-- Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Ritk Cabaret International, Inc. pursuant to Seci66 of the Sarbanedxley Act
of 2002 and Section 1350 of 18 U.S.C. 63.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdéport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Date: August 14, 200 By: /s/ Eric S. Langal
Eric S. Langar

Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Date: August 14, 200 By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshal
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial @#r
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eric S. Langan, Chief Executive Officer and Rdest of Rick's Cabaret International, Inc., certifat:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-QSB of Ricl's Cabaret International, In
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtede a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the small business issuef,eend for, the periods presente
this report;

4. The small business iss’'s other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contis

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the small business issuer and h

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdunecaused such disclosure controls and procedorée designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatieg to the small business issuer, includingcisisolidated subsidiaries, is m
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isfg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&garting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed un
my supervision, to provide reasonable assuranceardag the reliability of financial reporting anthet preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small bssinissuer's disclosure controls and procedurespaggented in this report ¢
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report basec
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the $fmasiness issuer's internal control over finanogglorting that occurred during
small business issuer's most recent fiscal yeahdmmaterially affected, or is reasonably likelynaterially affect, the small busin
issuer's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The small business issugrdther certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxd on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdve!
financial reporting, to the small business issueidependent registered public accounting firm #red audit committee of the sir
business issuer's board of directors (or persorisrp@ang the equivalent functions

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the smallibeiss issuer's ability to record, process, sumraair report financial informatic
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the small busine
issuer's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 14, 200 By: /s/ Eric S. Langal
Eric S. Langar

Chief Executive Officer and Preside




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Phillip K. Marshall, Chief Financial Officer dRick’s Cabaret International, Inc., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-QSB of Ricl's Cabaret International, In
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtede a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the small business issuef,eend for, the periods presente
this report;

4. The small business iss’'s other certifying officer and | are responsible establishing and maintaining disclosure controld

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the small business issuer and h

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdunecaused such disclosure controls and procedorée designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatieg to the small business issuer, includingcisisolidated subsidiaries, is m
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isfg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&garting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed un
my supervision, to provide reasonable assuranceardag the reliability of financial reporting anthet preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small bssinissuer's disclosure controls and procedurespaggented in this report ¢
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report basec
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the $fmasiness issuer's internal control over finanogglorting that occurred during
small business issuer's most recent fiscal yeahdmmaterially affected, or is reasonably likelynaterially affect, the small busin
issuer's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The small business issugrdther certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxd on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdve!
financial reporting, to the small business issueidependent registered public accounting firm #red audit committee of the sir
business issuer's board of directors (or persorisrp@ang the equivalent functions

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the smallibeiss issuer's ability to record, process, sumraair report financial informatic
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the small busine
issuer's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 14, 200 By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshall
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial @#r




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR
RULE 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Rick’alaret International, Inc. (the "Company") on FA®QSB for the quarter ended June 30,

2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the "Report"), |, Eric.&ngan, Chief Executive Officer and

President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0. 81350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with thejtérements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemgiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respects, thwafficial condition and results
operations of the Company.

Date: August 14, 200 By: /s/ Eric S. Langal
Eric S. Langar

Chief Executive Officer and Preside




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR
RULE 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Rick’alaret International, Inc. (the "Company") on FA®QSB for the quarter ended June 30,
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the "Report"), |, Phiki. Marshall, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1380adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarlb@rkes Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejtérements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemgiExchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respects, thwafficial condition and results

operations of the Company.

Date: August 14, 200 By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshal
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financialfioér




